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NOTICE OF 6th (SIXTI) ANNUAL GENERAL MEFETING

NOTICE IS HERERY GIVEN THAT THE DEM(SIXTI ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
VICTORY FLECTRIC VEHICLES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED WILI, BE HELD ON
MONDAY, 30" SEPTEMBER, 2024 AT 02.30 M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO. 6, SECOND FLOOR, BLOCK A-5, MAA BHAGWATI

APARTMENT, PASCHIM VIHARWEST DELII- 1 10063

ORDINARY IHISINESS:

1. ADOPTION OF AUNMTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCIL, 2024

To receive. consider and adopt the Audit Report and Audited I'inancial Statement including balance

sheet, Profit & Loss, Cash Flow Statement, explanatory nole annexed together with accounting

policies for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2024,

2. DIRECTOR ELIGIBLE FOR RETIRE BY ROTATION

To consider re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay Kumar popli. Managing Dircctor (holding DIN:

06984773} who retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himse!f for re-appoiniment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. REGULARIZATION OF ADDMTIONAL DIRECTOR, MR. PRAVEEN SHARMA (DIN:
10729622) AS DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Praveen Sharma (DIN: 10729622) who was appointed as an Additional
Independent Director of the Company. by the Board of Directors in their Mecting held on 197
August. 2024, under Section 161(1) and 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof) and applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds
office up to the date of this Annual General Mecting, consent of the company be and is hereby
accorded to be appointed as Director of the Company, on such terms and conditions as may be
agreed between the Board and Mr. Praveen Sharma subject to a tenure of 5 years ending on 182

August 2029,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors be and is herchy authorized to take all such

acts. malters and things as may be deemed nceessary and expedient for giving effect (o this

resolulion.”
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By Order of The Board OF Directors
For Victory Flectric Vehicles International Limited

SANIAY KUMAR rorLy

Managing Director

DIN: 06984773

Address: G-, FLAT NO.2 PASCHIM |
VIHAR NEW DELHI- 110063

Mace: New Delh
Date: 10.08.2024

NOTES: [

1) A member entitled 1o attend and vote at the Annual General Mecting (Tthe mecting™) is entitled 10 |
appoint a proxy 1o attend and vote on a poll instead of himsell? herself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. The instrument appointing proxy in order to be effective should be duls

completed, stamped and signed and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
before commencement of the Meeting.

2) No member will authorize any person to act as proxy as proxy can’t vole on show of hands.
3) Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are

requested (o send a cenified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to anend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4) Members who have not registered their ¢-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
addresses to receive all communication including Annual Report. Notices, Circulars ete. from the
Company electronically. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to ensure to keep
their ermail addresses updated with the Depository Participants. Members holding shares in physical
mode are alvo meguested o update their email addresses by writing to the Maashitla Securnities
Private Limited Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company at the address mentioned below
quoting their folio number(s): Maashitla Securities Private Limited at Kroshna Apra Business
Square, 451, Netaji Subhash Place. Wazirpur. New Delhi. Dethi 110034

5) In case of joint holders anending the meeting, only such joint holder whose name appears first in
the order of names will be entitled to vote.

6) Members are requested to bring their atiendance slips duly filled in along with their copy of this
notice for attending the Meeting.

7) The Nutice of the Annual general meeting has been sent 1o all the sharcholders by hand at their

" ; ith the € . ona
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the venve of the AGM is enclosed,

Ll . ’ " " "
M A person whose name is recorded in the repister of members or inthe repister of benelicial owners
maintained by the depasitories as on the cut-ofMdate, i ¢, |4™ September 2020 only shall be entitled

Lo cast their vote,

) AN documents welerred 10 in the Nutice and the Explanntory Staternent, amd reguiring Membors®
approval. amd sueh statutory recondy amd registers, o nre reguired W be kept aipen Toe jnspection
under the Companies Act, 2008, shall be clectromically available for ipection, Members can

nspeet the same by sending an emuil al s ictoryevipla il com

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1DH1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act™)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating 1o the Special Business mentioned in the

accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3: Regularization of Additional Independent Directar, Mr Praveen Sharma (IMN: 10729622)

ns Director of the compiny,

Mr. Praveen Sharma (DIN: 10729622). was appointed as an Additional Independent Direetor with effect
from 19™ August. 2024 by the Board of Directors in accordance with Articles of Association and Section
161 & 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet™), Hence, he will hold office up to the date of the ensuing

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the company. and it is
advaniageous 1o have Mr. Prmveen Sharma (DIN: 10729622} on oard. Accordingly, the DBoard

recommends the resolution for approval of Sharcholders of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives other than Mr. Praveen Sharma (DIN:
10729622) is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution for the approval of the Members.

Sr. | Particulars Praveen Sharma

l. | Age 28 years S

2. | Qualification Post Graduate -

3. | Experience He holds 6 Years of Lxperience in the Production,
Operations Department, R&D and Marketing of LElectric

Vehicles
4. | Terms and | As may be decided
Conditions ol
_appointment
3. | Remuneration sought | No change ’ PR
* pai ; i ional Lid. lectne Vehicles Intemad
bepaid oy ElecticVebicles mlamﬂmf;ﬂ _ Victory Ele ¢
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6, | Remuneration  last | As may be decided

drawn
7. | Date ol lirst | 197082024

appointment on the

Board . i e
85 | Details ol | nil

sharcholding in the
| Company e =
9 | Detnls al | NA

relatiomship with

other Dhirectors,

manager  ad - Key

Managerial

Personnel =

10. | Number ol Boand | 3
meetings  attended
during the year 23-24
11. | Details of | NIL
Directorship in other
Companies (Past)
12. | Membership /1 Nil
Chairmanship of
commitice of other
Doards

By Order of The Board OF Directors
For Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited

73 Intemalional Ld.
¥

. mational Ltd-
o \ictory Em@{ghﬂ%@

>

SANJAY KUMAR POYEIPT
Managing Dircetor

DIN: 06984773

Address: GH-8, FLAT NO. 2 PASCHIM — q’
VIHAR NEW DELHI-110063

Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2024
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Signature of Member Signature of I'ﬁny imhlurm
Notes:

I. This Formyar

PROXY I onder 1 e
OlYice

_ elective shoyh by dily completed andg muns|
ol the Company be fisre

trmmencement of the Megy ing

= A proxy need ol be o member

b depemitenl at the Registered

al e Company,

X Forithe Resoluj

wis, I'\p'l.'llmmr} SMatenmenis
Mew inp.

and Notes, Please refer 1o (he Nutice of the Anmial Ceneral
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- _’1 i : .
Victory Electie Vehicles Intemaliqpal Ltd.

" o
- “‘?vf\};‘/ —
T X

(¥ Scanned with OKEN Scanner



e

MGT-1

PROXY FORM
|Pursuant 1o Section 115(6) of

the Companies Act, 2013 an|
of the Companies (Manage

ment and Allminhlnlinn] Rules, n14)

Name of Member(s)
Registered Address
Femail 1 _
Folin No_/ DP 13

'We. being the member (shal .......

- m wxee-- Shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint:

[ Name [:7 LT Y e —
Address | ; Signature | - N
or failing him / her e
MName | . | E-mailid [:] ]
Address | : | Signature | -
or failing him / her

3 | Name ] E-mailid | :

|| Address | ; Signature | -

as my/our proxy (o attend and vole (on a poll) for mefus and on my/our behalf ar the

Annual General Meeting of the company. o be held on the MONDAY, 30TH SEITEMBER, 2024 AT
0230 P.M, AT THE REGISTERED OFFICF, OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO. 6,
SECOND FLOOR, BLOCK A-5, MAA BHA

GWATI APARTMENT, PASCHIM VIHAR,WEST
DELHI- 110063 and ar any adjournment thereof

in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Rﬁﬂ:lmn Diescription For* Againa*
AL,
Ordinary Business =]
I Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the Financial
) Year ended 315t March, 2024
,, To reappoint the Director Mr, Sanjay Kumar Popli (DIN:
= 06984773) as Director of the company who retire by rotation.
Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Praveen Sharma
3. (DIN: 10729622) as direclor of the company. |

Victory Electric Vehicles Internatienal Lid

Ve insmagonal Ltd,
'\ﬁml‘f Elfﬂl'.ﬂ I‘:"1:|’...’:"/-M ﬂ.&!l‘
e

. L\%,
L ‘RY \ & Director
- Tl

*This is optional. Please put a tick mark (}in the

uppropriate column apainst the resolutions indicated in
the box. Il'a member leaves the “For™ or “Aga

inst” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the

proxy will be entitled 1o vote in the manner he / she thinks appropriate,
Slgl'lﬂd lhiﬁ.-------“.....dﬂ}' ul'.‘,............‘_................ Eﬂ:’-‘ AFEIX .
RENVENLUE
STAMP
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MGT-11
FROXY FORM
[Pursuant (o Section 5(6) of the Companies Act, 2003 anil
Rule 19(3) of the Companies {Manapement anid Administration) Hules, 2014

L I s —

Registered z\wl.l_u.ln::_».-: i, : I

[-_ﬁ‘llﬂﬂ R o 3 =S i o D
YolioNo. /DPID & Cliemt D[]~ =
UWe. being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint:
1 [ Name | [ E-mail ig |
L | Address | : [ Signature |
or Elipg_'hir_'!'lﬂﬂ
2 | Name 2 [-mail id
Address | Signalure
or failing him / her
3 | Name . E-mail id
Address | : Signature

as my/our proxy 1o attend and vole (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalfat the

Annual General Meeting of the company, 1o be held on the MONDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2024 AT
02.30 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO. 6,
SECOND FLOOR, BLOCK A-5, MAA BHAGWATI APARTMENT, PASCHIM VIIIARWEST
DELHI- 110063 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

"ES:;!:'[IGI:I Description For* Against*

Ordinary Business

I Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the Financial
’ Year ended 31st March, 2024

5 To reappoint the Director Mr. Sanjay Kumar Popli (DIN:
" 06984773) as Director of the company who retire by rotation,

Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Praveen Sharma
(DIN: 10729622) as director of the company.

: .
e [ptosnaonal Lid Victory Electric Vehicles Internatona! Lid.
Victory Electric Vel

{Oﬁs “E{dg\\@(/ Director

*This is optional. Plcase put a tick mark () in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in
the box. IT a member leaves the “For™ or “Against”™ column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the
proxy will be entitled 10 vole in the manner he / she thinks appropriate,

Signed this,....coe.... .dl.'i} L] .. ). AFFIX
REVENUL
STAMP

-
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ATTESNDASCE SLIP
06® Apsual Geseral Merting - 3™ September, 2024 a1 02:30 AL

I Berein record o prewence 2 the 16™ Arnual General Meeting of the Cornpany held on MONDAY, 30TH
SEFTEMBER. 2024 AT 023 PM. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF TIHE COMPANY

SITUATED AT PLOT SO 6 SECOSD FLIOMW, BLOOK A-S, MAA BIHAGWATI APARTMENT.
PASCHIM VTHARWEST DELIT- 110663

Foll e of the Membher (In BLIOXCK LLTTERS) ;..

Fedo Yo - S R

DPIDNo - ___ . . !
Clacz 10D Ya - : Rt e A R e

oo, of Shpres held

F=!l meme of Prous (1 BLOCK LETTERS) :
Sepmasure of MemberPring:
Dac

‘ootz - Plezse carms this Anendance Slip with you and hand over the same duly signed at the space provided.
2 the efrerce of the Meetmy Hall.

g 3|
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ROUTE MAP
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SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of VICTORY ELECTRIC VEHICLES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements “

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VICTORY ELECTRIC VEHICLES
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (herein after referred to as 'the Company' which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (herein after referred to as ‘the financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act,2013 (herein after referred to Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, and read with
rules and accounting principles generally accepted in India , of the State of Affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2024 and its financial performance including its cash flows for the year ended on

that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. We are independent of the Company in accordance with

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India tﬂgetw

k™
oS iy

independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statemen

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noida West,Uttar

Pradesh-201318, Ph — 0120-6053963, ca.sunil@skspi.in
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SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors Report
Thereon ]

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the standalone

Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our Opinion on the standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statement, Our responsibility is to read
the other information and , In doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act,2013('The Act’) with respect to preparation and presentation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal ﬁnanci;i!,/
-
.',-":

|'|[A|||’

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater h-mi“ T
Pradesh-201318, Ph — 0120-6053963, ca.sunil@skspj.in
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that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error .In
preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.The

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these fina ncial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls. =75 5—“5“{:‘;?&

SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noida West,Uttar

Eradash-201318 Ph — 0120-8053963, ca.sunil@skspi.in
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SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 2
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to L
continue as a going concern. If we conclude thata material uncertainty exists, we are required
| to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements !
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our ‘conclusions are based on .
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. |

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the. results of our work; and .

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Head Office: B-613. NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noida West,Uttar
Pradesh-201318, Ph — 0120-6053963, ca.sunil@skspiin
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Vm SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS I

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ,

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the l
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in |

the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order-
2. As required by gection 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of e

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flow dealt with

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

(ey on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on

31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

()  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report

in Annexure B;

(g) Inour ppinion the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid by the Company to its Directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
read with schedule V to the Act.

(hy with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in <

__________——____.__,_____________,__ P
Head Office: B-813, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noida West, Uttar
Pradesh-201318, Ph- 0120-6053963, ;a.suﬂﬂ@gmj.in i
Branch Office: 125, 1# Floor, Neha Industrial Estate, Dattapada Road, Near Su-Swagat Hotel, Borivali East, .
Mumbai. Maharashtra-400066, Ph-022-40111160. !




(A. SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us we state that:

(i) The company did not have any pending litigations against which would impact its
Financial position.

()] The company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contract for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. k

(iv)
A) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in with the understanding, whether recorded in
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;
B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and
C) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that bﬁﬂ%ﬂgd
g P20

any

us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) cq,p
les o

it

:':.j-':x,.!;-:rlr--j s
Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Moida West Uttar
Pradesh-201318, Ph — 0120-6053863, ca.sunil@skspj.in

Branch Office: 125, 1* Floor, Neha Industrial Estate, Dattapada Road, Near Su-Swagat Hotel, Borivali East,
Miumbai Maharashira-400066 Ph-022-40111160. '
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/V/ m SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES

material misstatement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year

(wi) Bases on our examination, which included the test checks, the company has used
the accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year
ended on 315t March 2024 which has a feature of recording the audit trail (edit log) | 1

facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant !
transactions recorded in the software. Further during the course of our audit we

did not come across any instances of the audit trail being tampered with.

Place : Noida SKSP] & ASSOCIATES | |
Date: 10.08.2024 Chartered Accountants .
(Firm Registrathn No: 023970N)
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

i a) Inrespect of fixed assets comprising Property, Plant and equjpment:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets so reporting under
this clause is not applicable

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, Property, Plant & Equipment
have been physically verified by the management at a reasonable Interval , which in our
opinion is Reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been
Physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies
between the book records and the physical assets were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
Examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(other Than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed In favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the financial statements are held in

the name of the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and its
intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, this provision of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

ii) a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion; physical
verification of the inventories have been conducted at reasonable intervals by.the

fies (
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management and having regard to the size and nature of business of the Company and
nature of its inventory, the coverage and procedures of such verification by the
management is appropriate. As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined i
by us, the value of the discrepancies noticed on physical verification by management did
not exceed 10% or more in aggregate of each class of inventory. !

.» b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
i examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working ) '
| capital limits in excess of five Crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the Company with such banks are not in agreement with the books of account of the |
Company. The details of the discrepancies are as follows: 1

) ' [Amounts in Lakhs)
As Per Stock Statement As Per Books of Accounts ‘
" ¥ Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
| INVENTORIES 1015.25 | 785.15 795.15 | 84575| 73546 | 435.25 | 395.55 | 364.63 ’
1 TRADE ' '
| RECEIVABLES 338.54 | 481.17 781.06 | 1081.07 | 313.29 | 481.17 | 792.15 | 1021.13 | |
| TRADE
PAYABLE 75.15 | 125.65 214.65 21546 | 125.46 | 125.65 | 231.46 255.65 !
l |
| 3 [Amounts in Lakhs) ‘ i
Differences
11 |02 Q3 Q4 |
INVENTORIES 279.80 34990 399.60 481.12 !
TRADE i
RECEIVABLES 25.25 0.00 -11.08 59.93 ’ |
TRADE |
PAYABLE -50.30 0.00 -16.80 -40.19 | |

iii) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, but the company has provided loans during the year and details are as
under

a) The company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given below

Particulars Amount (Rs. In Lakh) ‘
| Aggregate of amount of Loan given s

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noida West, Uttar
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Companies in which directors

are
interested g

!
(i) OK Green Mobility Private 71.64 |
Limited (NET)

Amount of Loan Given : 87.84
Amount Received Back: 16.20

Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

Companies in which directors

are interested 209.36
(i) OK Green Mobility Private
Limited

b) As per information and explanation given to us, The loan given is interest free loan payable
on demand without any agreement so we unable to comment on the prejudicial of the loan
given to the company interest

PRp———

¢) The loan is repayable on demand and No interest has been charged on loan Given to OK
Green mobility Private Limited

d) This clause is not applicable as loan is repayable on demand.
e) This clause is not applicable as loan is repayable on demand.
f) Company has granted loans repayable on demand. Aggregate amount of loan outstanding as

1 on 31% March 2024 is Rs 209.36 lakh. The loans were granted to a related party as reported
in clause iii (a) above.

iv] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
granted loan to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the
provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more
than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of |

the Act.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has }
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and had .
no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of sections 73, 74, 75 J
and 76 of the Act, the rules framed thereunder and the Circulars, notifications issued from time
to time with regard to the deposits accepted. No order has been passed by the-Eift '
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| Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other |
! Tribunal in this respect. |

vi) The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as |
the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us in respect of statutory dues;

a) in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess have been regularly deposited by the company with appropriate
authorities in all cases during the year. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof, which were outstanding at the year end for a period of more than six months from
the date they become payable.

b) There are no undisputed statutory dues payable on 31+ March,2024.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are
not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to

any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information explanatjaﬁ provided to us, money raised by
way of term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were '
raised.

d) In our opinion, according to the information explanation provided to us, there are no funds
raised on short term basis. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence mm:tmg under
the clause (ix)(e) and(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tuwer 3, Flnt No. 17, Temzuna—4 Greater Noida West,Uttar :
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x) a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year, Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has made preferential allotment of equity shares
during the year under audit , the company has issued 5,70,000 equity shares at Rs 10 per
share . The requirement of section 42 and 62 of the companies act have s been complied
with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which it was raised.

xi) a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company, noticed or reported during the year nor have we been informed for such |
case by the management. .

b) We have not come across of any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company during _
the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
by the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to company

Xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the |
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and bases on our examination of the
records of the company transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed

xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with
provision of section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noida West, Uitar |
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xvi) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3
(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii) Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses
in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, there was no issues,
objections or concerns raised by outgoing auditor.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realization of financial assets and payment of
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty
exists as on the date of audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date.

xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi)The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in the report.

SKSP) & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 023970N)

SUNIL KUMAR SINGH
Partner

Membership No.: 503608
GREATER NOIDA,

10.08.2024 ; '
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VICTORY ELECTRIC
VEHICLES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ("the Company™) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with

our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. |

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on ;

Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 1
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both |
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was &stahﬁﬁl;qi;aud

' S 1 "
Ay, i

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materialrespects. ey e
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audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding

of internal financial co ntrols over financial Teporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud orerror,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit Opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financia]

reporting,

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A company’'s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

Preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

Head Office: B-613, NX One Trade Centre Tower-3, Plot No. 17, Techzone-4, Greater Noidg West, Uttar
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the intetnal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

SKSP] & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 023970N)

SUNIL KUMAR SINGH
Partner

Membership No.: 503608
UDIN: 24S03608BKARZNER29
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DIRECTORS REPORT
FOR TUE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MY MARCI, 2024

T,
The Mentsers,
VICTORY ELECTRIC VEINMCLES INTERNATIONAL LINITED

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 06™ (Sisth) Annual Report of Victory §leciric
Vehicles Tmernational Limated on the working of the Company together with the Audited Financial

Statements Tor the Dinancial Year evdied 3180 March, 2024,

EINANCIAL GHLIGHTS:

Your Company™s finuncial performance during the Financial Year 2023-24 as compared 1o that of
the previows Financial Year 2022-23 is summarized below:-
{Amaount in Lakhs)

IMarficulars 2023-24 2022-2}
Revenue from Operations 4R35 S190.91
Other Income 70.49 T 9an
lotal Expenses 41218.62 S100.82
| Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 705.15 v9.48
' Less: Tas expense 179.56 1726
Net Profit(Loss) Afier Tax 525.58 7223
Eaming per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 !
cach) 20.51 5.52

STATE OF COMPANY™S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company (Victory Electrie Vehicles Intemational Limited ) was incorporated on 26% day of October |
2018 in the State of Delhi to primarily earry on the business of Trading and manufacturing of Electric |
Vehicles and there has been no change in the business of Company. The Company is under process of
listing before the SME platform of NSE.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND

ATE OF REPORT, IF ANY:

There are no such material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial

statements relate and the date of the repont except the inerense in Authorised capital and Split of
Authorised Capital to Rs. 12.50 Crore of Rs, 5 each from Rs. 10 each and the issuance of Bonus Shares

Lo the Sharcholders ol the Company Victory Elegtic Vehicles nlemational Lid
fe o
v

Disecter

i
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In erder 1o conserve the finaneials resonrees as oo major businesy potivity was eorried, o dividend hiy
been recommended by the Doand of Directors For the Financial Year 2023240,

TRAMSFER TO RESERVE

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2008 (hercinafter selerred 1o as “the Act™) do not mandate any
transfer of profils to any Reserve. Your Company has neither imnsferred nor propeoses o transler any
amount to any reserves, however the profit of Rs, 525580 lakhs) Toemes part ol the head Reserves &
Sumlus during the linancial year,

SHMARE CAPITAL

The Company's Eguity Share Capital position as on 31 March, 20240 b5 a5 Tollows:-
(lipure in Lakhs)
" Issued, Subseribed & Paid-up
Share Capital

Authorized Share Capital

| No.ofSharey Face Value  Amount (Rs,) " No.of | Face Value Amount (Rs.)
(Rs.) Shares (1w}
Equity 35,00.000 10 350 3500000 [ 3s0
| Tatal 350 Total 350

DEFOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, ic.
within the meaning of Section 2(31} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2{1)c) of the
Companies(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules. 2014 and as such there are no such oserdue deposits
outstanding as on 31¥ March, 2024,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Our Company does not have any Subsidiary Company and there was no change in this position during
the Financial Year 2023-2024.

ASSOCIATE COMPANY

COur Company does nol have any Associale Company and there was no change in this position during the
Financial Year 2023-2024,

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, the company has experienced the following changes in its management:

1. Appointment after the elose of financial year,
New members were added in the Board of Directors of the Company. The “““"‘iﬂlﬁ’]hﬂ!‘ﬁﬁ
-

appointment are as given below, . \ps m&ﬂﬂﬂ‘m:ﬂm [SD:. Imeenabongd Lt
qu,;ﬂi._‘la- - ) %
Wicwory " )
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d Sr. ) “iﬂ'ﬁ;r ;‘___I_ ” r
3 Nameof the D dentilication
No. ¢ Dhrector Number (DIN) Designation Date of Appaintment
1._|_BHAVNA SENGATL CoesIsis7 Diccctlor | 22060001
i _.2. ':li!\-\il l N ;\'lARh‘J\ l“?:[’hzz o -_l\ljlli”nﬂ.‘ll |)i|'l'l.ll'll' — |".'(}&_?02T—_
3 | Gurhinder Singh Obero T —

Note: Mr. Gurbinder Singh Oberoi had resipned as Director,

As of now, the Board comprises the following Directors:

2. The Board of Dircctors of the Company comprised of the following Directors as on 31* March,
2024
Sr. . o = Director ldentification ol B
No. Name of the Director Number (DIN) Designation
1. SANJAY KUMARPOPLL | 08719388 Managing Dircctor
2. SEEMA 08714944 Dircctor |
3. PALAK POPLY 09325666 Whole-time director

MEETINGS OF THE 1O

ARD OF DIRECTORS

The Meetings of the Board of Directors are pre-scheduled and intimated to all the Directors in advance
1o order to facilitate them to plan their schedule,

There were Fifteen Boarnd Meetings were held during the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2024 ic. 01-
04.2023, 03-04-2023, 12-04-2023, 15-04-2023, 19-04-2023, 11-05-2023. 08-06-2023. 18-07-2023, 10-08-
2023, 23-09-2023, 04-10-2023, 07-12-2023, 19-01-2024, 20-02-202 and 01-03-2024.

The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings was less than one Hundred and Twenty days.

The names of Members of the Board of Directors and their attendance at the Board Mectings are as under:

Name of the Directors Number of Board Mectings attended during the
No. Financial Year ended 31" March, 2024
l. SANJAY KUMARPOPLI
2 SEEMA Fifteen Boand Mectings
I % PALAK POPLY

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companics Act, 2013 with respect 10 the appointment of
Independent Directors are not applicable 1o our Company during the financial Year under consideration,

In terms of section 177(1) of the Companies Act 201 ng AudIUEN e OF the cOmPany Wa¥ not
Jiztory Electne Vehcies Intematan od. \)\%@
s (ﬂ)q/-;:b(,-’\ Durpctor
Ditector
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onstituted as on 3 1" March 2024 as the Company does not [all under the provision of constitution of
_“audit Commiltee.

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WINCH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION
HAS HEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PFERFORMANCE, I'TS DIRE
THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES

The provisions of Scction 1 34(3) (p) are not applicable ta the Company.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 'OLICY

In terms of section 177(1) of the Companies Act 2013, the Audit commitiee of the company was nol
constituted as on 319 March 2024 as the Company does not fall under the provision of constitution of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Policy.

DISCLOSURFE ON FESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism and overseas
through the committee, the penuine concemed expressed by the employees and other Directors. The
company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who |
express their concerns, The company has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee on reporting issues concemning the interest of employees and the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE& MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

As the company is not listed, therefore listing agreement is not applicable and the company is not
required to prepare the corporate governance & management discussion and analysis report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and hamssment free workplace for every
individual employees working with the Company. The Company always endeavors to creale and
provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

The Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harssmenl al workplace. The policy aims
at prevention of harassment of employees as well as contractors and lays down the guidelines for

identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment.

During the period under review. no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual
harassment.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

During the perind under review, Section 148(1) of the Companies A<t 2013 and the Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 are not applicahle (o, the Company. Hence. the Company has mot

maintained any cost records and not appointed any Cost Auditor. “Maonal Ly 4,
-'-.-'_'_'_.__ [ B
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a)

b)

€)

d)

c)

JLRF'UHATT. SOHCTAL RESPONSIRILITY

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Company Act, 2013 pertaining 10 CSK every company
having nel worth of 500 crore or e of iurmaover o TR crowe o more or net prnﬁl of § erore of more
during any financial vear shall constitule the Corporate Social Responsibiliny Committee of the [Board.

As per the '[l‘lll'l'lrk'lﬂllf\ Amendment Act, 2007 the wonds -'I:IH'_h financial !r:r" shall be substituted with
the words “the immediately preceding financial year™ (Section 17 of the Companies Amendment Act,
2007

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are
not applicable on the Company.

Weh link of annual return
In terms of Section 22(3) and Section 134(3)a) of the Companics Act, 2013, the Annual Ecturn has o
be hosted on the website of the Company. and the same shall be hosted on https /ivictoryevindia.com/.

Since the requirement (o prepare extract of Annual Retum in Form MGT-9 has been removed by the
Companies (Amendment) Act. 2017 notilied vide notification no. S,.0.2920(F) dated 28th August 2020

hence; the Company is no longer required 1o annex extract of Annual Retumn along with Boards” Repont.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). your Dircctors. to the best of their
knowledge and ability. conflirm as under:

that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31° March, 2024, the
applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

that such accounting pelicies have been selected and applied consistently. and such judzments and
cstimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair viewof the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2024 and the profit of the Company for the Financial Year
ended as at that date;

that proper and sufTicient care has been laken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company, for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

that the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2024 have been prepared on agoing
concern basis;

that proper Internal Financial Controls were in place and that the Financial Controls wereadequate and
were operating efTectively;

that proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company andthat

such systems are adequate and ting efMectively.
5¥% equale and operating ¢ m:"“.-!r}.- sﬁﬂmﬂ-ﬂ"ﬁ“‘d- W:‘lol'*fE ot
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APLANATION(S) I COMMENT(S) TO ¢ UALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS, ADVERSE
REMARKS & IMSCLAIMERS MADF BY THF STATUTORY ALDITONS:

There are no adverse remarks or qualifications, rewe
intheir Report for the Financial ¥ ear 20
the Board of Directors,

rvations o diselaimers maide by Statotiory Awlitors

23-24 and therefore, no explanations are requined 1o be piven hy

ERAUD RETORTING

During the Financial Year under res e, the Statutory Auditers have not reporied any incident of Traud

h‘l‘th\' "H-"ll ol ”ill‘l.'ll"l'“ ol ihe {.””1[11'"}'- l“‘”""“"“ Tiv II'H.‘ ri-rll\i'.iﬁl'l'. il 1"'«l|_'l.lllnr1- 143 12) ol the
Companies Act, 2013

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEFS OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
TUHE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of leans, gusrantees or investments made during the Financial Year ended 31 March,
2024, ifany. have been disclosed in the notes attached to and forming part of the Financial Statements of
the Company prepared for the Financial Year 2023-21, as per the provisions of Section 186 and Section
134030 e of the Companies Act. 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR_ARRANGEMENTS WITH _RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related partics referred to Section 188 of the Companics
Act. 2013, in the prescribed form AOC-2, is given at Annexore- | 1o the Directors’ Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FORFIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There is no Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption under section 134(3) for Financial Year
2023.24,

The Forcign exchange outgoing during the Financial year stood at Rs, 229.68 lakhs.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated cfforis 1o minimize, monitor and mitigate / control the probability and'or impact of
unfortunate events or lo maximize the realization of opportunitics,

The Company has laid down a comprehensive risk assessment and minimization procedure

which is
reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are revie

wed 1o ensure that executive
management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework,

The Board judges the fair and reasonable extemt of risks that your Company is willing to take and s
decisions shall be based on this reasonable judgment, _—

) P | -
— E/’f:* Vehicles Infama2onat LI u,@:t.«,.ﬂl'.'n:.r- Wigys Intermational 4.
AT ‘_______:fm '-:iﬁé_d_--'
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sersonnel) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year ended 319 March, 2024, accordingly, there is no
/ disclosure required.

INSOLVENCY AND RANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the FY 2023-24. no applicatiom has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code 2016;
henee the requirement to diselose the details ol application made or any proceeding pending under the

Insolvency and Bankruptey Cenle, 2016 during the year along with their status as at the end of the
financial year is not applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Boand place on record their appreciations of the whole hearted and sincere co-operation received

by the Company during the year from the employees, customers/ clients. bankers and various
Government authoritics at all levels,

For Victory Flectric Vehicles International Limited

SANJAY KUMAR MOFPLI PALAK POPLY
Managing Director Director
DIN: 06954773 DIN: 08607295
Address; GH-8, FLAT NO. 2 PASCHIM Address: A-3/108, FIRST FLOOR
VIHAR NEW DELHI-110063 PASCHIM VIHAR NEW DELHI-110063
Place: New Delhi Place: Mew Dethi
Drate: 10.08.2024 Date: 10.08.2024
: mational Lid.
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GNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY TIIE

REGULATORS OR COURTS

No significant maten 5 W :
o SIE rial orders were passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going
concemn status of the Company

and its Muture operntions during the Financial Year 2023-24

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The has in place i i i Finanzial 'y
e C “"."Ftﬂ“} has in place adequate intermal financial controls with reference 1o Financial Statements,
inthe opinion of the Board of Directors,

Also, the Com rany has a proper system of inlernal controls W ensure that all assets are safeguarded and

protected against luss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are authorized, recorded
and reported correctly,

During the period under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was vbserved.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M's SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES.. Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 023970N) were

appointed as Statutory Auditors of Victory Electric Vehicles Intemnational Limited, for a term of 5 (five)
conseculive years

Your Company had received confimmation from M/s SKSPJ & ASSOCIATES. regarding their eligibility
under Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,
The Auditors” Report for the financial year 2023-24 do net contain any qualification or reservation or

adverse remark. Further, no fraud was reported by the auditors of the Company under Section 143(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Notes on financial statement referred Lo in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call
lor any further commenis.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

During the period under review, Section 138(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 were not applicable on the Company.

SECRETERIAL AUDITOR

During the period under review, Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 were not applicable on the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There were 110 employees on the rolls of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24. Furher,
none of the employees of the company is covered under the eriteria specified as per Section 197(12) of

the Act read with Rule §, sub-rule (2)9fthe € wwmiuhnm ‘tnd Remunecation ot Managerialunsl L
; * VALY Lhh PR (ML R
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(Pursuant 1o clause (h) of sub-section (1) of section 13 of the Act

ANNEXURE 'I' TO BOARD'S REPORT

FORM NO. A -2

and Rule 82) of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2004

Fo m for 'i:'ﬁsu: In.'-unr- of partic u!ars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referned to i sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
am’s length transaction under thind provise thereto.

I, Details of contracts or amapgements or imnsactions not at Arm’s length basis.: NIL
2. Details of contracts ur arrangements or transactions at Arm's lenpth basis.

{Figure in lakhs)

Nature of Name of the | nature of Duration of | Salient terms | Date of [ Amount Amounl
Contract related party | relationship | the ol the approv | paid as of
conlmels/arr | contracisor | al by advances, | contracts/
angementsitr | armangement | the ifany arrangem
ansaclion 50r Board enls/trans
transaction action
including the
walue, if any
Remuneration | Sanjay Key Throughout | NA 0l- - 13.0%
Kumar Popli | Managerial | the year 04,202
personnel 3
Remuneration | Seema Key Throughout | NA - - [2.27
Managenial | the year 04.202
personnel 3
Remuncration | Malok Poply Key Throughout | NA 01- - 13.13
Managerial | the vear 4202
personnel 3
Remuneration | Kanwal Noin | Relative of | Throughout | NA ol- - 3.60
Director the year 4202
3
Sale of goods | Future star Company in | Throughout | NA 01- - 23819
energy which the year 4202
solutions directors 3
privale are
limited interested
Sale of poods | Active power | Proprictors | Throughout | NA al- . 2382
control & hip in the year 04,202
care which 3
director is
proprictor
Purchase of | Future star Company in | Throughout | NA - - 910.24
poods cnergy which the year O-.202
solutions directors i
privale are
limited interested

Victory EWens Y=g T rana T Vickony Bl
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hase of Aclive power | Proprictors | Throu ghout | NA 0l- - 77.68
fonds control & hip in the year 04202
care which 3
director is
proprictor

For Viclory Electric Vehicles International Limited

SANJAY KUMAR POPLI
Manuaging DNrector

DIN: 06984773

Address: GH-R, FLAT NO. 2
VIHAR NEW DELII-110063

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: 10.08,2024
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FALAK POPLY

Director

DIN; 0X607295
Address: A-3/108, FIRST FLOOR
PASCHIM VIITAR NEW DELHI-1T10063

Place; Mew Delhi
Dae: 10,08.20244

Victary Electric Viehiclas
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Director
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Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited
CIN:U31909DL2018PLC341184
Plot No. 6, Second Floor, Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment, Paschim Vihar, West Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110063

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2024

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements)
Accounting Policies

(Amount in Lakhs)
. Note Figure as at the end of Figure as at the end of
Particulars No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
I |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) |Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capita 3 261.00 204.00
T 4 709.53 195.09
2) |Share application money pending allotment
970.53 399.09
3) |Non-Current Liabilities
. i 5 - 3331
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6A
(C)Other Long Term Liabilities 7 80.16 81.37
(d) Long Term Provisions 8 17.11
97.27 114.68
4) |Current Liabilities .
- 5 530.49 587.82
(b) Trade payables 9
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3581 16.56
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 219.83 591.80
(c) Other current Liabilities 7 157.34 129.82
- isi 8 182.89 29.01
1,126.36 1,355.00
Total 2,194.17 1,868.76
Il |ASSETS
1) |Non-current assets
(i) Property,Plant & Equipment 10 115.26 14191
(ii) Capital Work In Progress 18.45 -
L 133.71 141.91
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 6A 4.55 175
(d) Long-term Loans and Advances 11 2397 59.14
€ Other Non Current Assets 15 i 1557 34.33
44.08 95.22
2) |Current assets
(b) Inventories 12 364.63 141.56
(c) Trade receivables 13 1,021.13 850.18
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 14 44.95 3.17
(e) Short-term Loans and Advances 11 515.21 558.16
() Other Current Assets 15 70.45 78.58
2,016.37 1,631.64
Total 2,194.17 1,868.76

As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For SKSP] & Assoclat

Partner
Membership No. 503608
FRN: 023970N

Place: Greater Noida
Date: 10.08.2024

UDIN: 24.S03608BKALZNBR2S

g Director

DIN: 06984773~

CFO
AKAPP5307R

For Victory Electric Vehicles International Ltd

Palak Po
Whole-time dire
DIN:.086 &\’

cs

A-54667 -
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Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited
CIN:U3 1909DL2018PLC341184
Plot No. 6, Second Floor, Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment, Paschim Vihar, West Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110063
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
. Note N Figures for the period Figures for the period
Particulars 20| ending31-03-2024 ending 31-03-2023
Revenue from operations 16 4,844.28 5,190.91
Il |Other Income 17 79.49 9.40
i 11 Total Income (I +11) 4,923.77 5,200.31
i
{ IV [Expenses: ,
l Cost of Materials consumed 18 3,846.02 4,358.66
: Change in inventory 18(a) (124.02) 274.69
: Employee benefit expense 19(a) 144,93 126.37
i Financial costs 19(b) 49.79 63.85
| Depreciation 10 27.51 32.74
i Administrative and Other expenses 19(c¢) 274.38 24453
{ Total Expenses (1V) 4,218.62 5,100.82
|
iy Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items & tax (11 -1v) 705.15 99.48
i VI |Exceptional Items -
Ii- VII |Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V-vi) 705.15 99.48
VIII Extraordinary Items
IX |Profit before tax (VII - viI) 705.15 99.48
X |Tax expense:-
(1) Current tax 182.36 29.01
(2) Deferred tax (2.80) (1.75)
(3) Earlier years s =
i Profit(Loss) from the eriod from continuin operations (IX-X
-1 XI ( v 8o ( ) 525.58 72.23
S XII |Profit/ (Loss) from disconn‘nuing operations -
: XIII |Tax expense of discountinuing operations " e
H
l [XIv  |Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing operations(X11-XI1y) ;
4
" xv Profit/(Loss) for the period (XI +X1V) 525.58 72.23
I
| Ivi. Earning per equity share:-
' (1) Basic/Diluted 20 20.51 552

SKSP] & Associates

AiPer Our Report of Even Date Attached
o
rtered Accountants

Paitner
Memmbership No. 503608

‘FRE: 023970N

Plafe: Greater Noida

Dat: 110.08.2024 : e
UDIN: 2 4-S03608 RKARZN 8829

For Victory Electric Vehicles International Ltd

j mﬂﬁj
Managing Director

DIN: 06984773

CFO cs
AKAPBS307R A-54667 ©
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vm«rfﬁéatr!r Vehicles International Limited
CIN:U31909DL2018PLC341184
Plot No. 6, Second Floor, Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment, Paschim Vihar, West Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110063
Statement of Cash Flow as on 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax and after prior period item 705.15 99.48
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 27.51 32.74
Interest expense 49.79 63.85
Interest Income (0.97) (0.07)
provision for Gratuity 6.50 .
Preliminary Expenses Written off . 0.02
Liability Wrtitten Off
Bad debths
Discount
Prior Period items s
Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital changes:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables (170.96) (61.51)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (223.08) 551.00
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loan & Advances 99.69 (169.79)
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loan & Advances 3517 (10)
Repayment of Other Long Term Liabilites (1.21) (13.09)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 8.13 (59.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (352.71) (174.34)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilites b 27.52 15.42
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 18.76 (5.05)
Cash generated from operations 229.29 269.67
Interest paid (49.79) (63.85)
Income taxes paid (14.10) (17.63)
Dividends paid
Net cash from operating activities 165.40 188.19
Cash flows from investing activities
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19.31) (6.82)
Interest income 0.97 0.07
Loans & Advances Received /(Given) (71.64) (136.35)
Net cash used in investing activities (89.97) (143.10)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 57.00 67.50
Repayment of long-term borrowings (33.31) (107.31)
Repayment of Short-term borrowings (57.33) (51.18)
Net cash used in financing activities (33.64) (90.99)
Net increase/Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 41.78 (45.90)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 317 49.07
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 44.95 317
For Victory Electric Vehicles International Ltd
q
CA Sunil Kuny Palak Poply|
Partner Whole-time dire,
Membership No. 503608 m;mﬁ,’f
FRN: 023970N o
Place: Greater Noida
Date: 10.08.2024 L
UDIN: 24503600 BKAKZNBR2S cFo cs
AKAPP5307R A-54667
s




NOTE -3. SHARE CAPITAL

Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited
CIN:U31909DL2018PLC341184

Plot No. 6, Second Floor, Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment, Paschim Vihar, West Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110063

Notes Annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Amount in Lakhs)

Figures as at the end of current reporting period

Figures as at the end of previous reporting

Particulars Number of shares * Rs Number of Rs
' shares * i
(a) Authorised
35,00,000 (March 31,2023 : 35,00,000) Equity shares 35,00,000 350 35,00,000 350
of Rs.10/- each with voting rights
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
(C.Y.26,10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each with fully 26,10,000 261 20,40,000 204
paid up)
(P.Y: 20,40,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully
paid up)
Total 26,10,000 261 20,40,000 204
a)Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023
No.of shares * Amount _ No.of shares * Amount
Balance of Shares at the beginning of year 20,40,000 204.00 13,65,000 136.50
Add:- Addition during the year 5,70,000 57.00 6,75,000 67.50
Less:- Buy back during the year - u - i
Balance of Shares at the end of the year 26,10,000 261.00 20,40,000 204.00

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. No Dividend has been declared by the Company during the year.

c) List of Shareholders holding more than 5% share capital

(i) Equity Shares As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares * % holding | No.of Shares * % holding
Sanjay Kumar Popli 11,10,000 42.53 8,60,000 42,16
Seema 14,90,000 57.09 11,70,000 57.35
d) SHARES HELD BY PROMOTORS

As At March 31, 2024

Promotor's Name No of shares* % holding % Change during the year
Sanjay Kumar Popli 11,10,000 42.53 0.37
Seema 14,90,000 57.09 (0.27)
Palak Popli 9,000 0.34 (0.10)
As At March 31, 2023

Promotor's Name No of shares* % holding % Change during the year
Sanjay Kumar Popli 8,60,000 42.16 B (9.87)
Seema 11,70,000 57.35 10.10
Palak Popli 9,000 0.44 (0.23)

* Number of shares and face value of shares are given in absolute figures.

As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For SKSP] & Associates

Partner
Membership No. 503
FRN: 023970N
Place: Greater Noida
Date: 10 08. 2024

For Victory Electric Vehicles International Ltd

DIN: 06984773

CFO
AKAPP5307R

Palak Poply "+, *
Whole-time dire

DIN: 08607295
“
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Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited
CIN:U31909DL2018PLC341184
Plot No. 6, Second Floor, Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment, Paschim Vihar, West Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110063
Notes To Statement of Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note Figure as at the end of Figure as at the end of
sNo. Farticatiny | 31.03.2024 31,03.2023
RESERVE & SURPLUS | Amountason  31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03-
i 2023
Opening Balance 195.09 12285
Add:
Net Profit/ Loss for the current year 525.58 7223
Less: Provision For Gratutity for earlier years 11.13
709.53 195.09
Total 709.53 195.09

Long Term Borrowings [ Short Torm Borrowings |
Amountason 31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03- Amountason [ Amount as on
] 2023 31-03-2024 31.03.2023

Secured Loan
HDFC OD A/C* - - 497.43 480.25
Term Loan HDFC ** - 17.1451 4715 65.04
Kia Car Loan HDFC *** = 18735 187 2.63
GECL HDFC Loan **** # 14.0416 14.04 39.89
Unsecured Loan S
Seema Poply # 0.2500

Total - 3331 530.49 587.02

7 Bank Overdraft is secured by the way of primary hypothecation of entire current assets, collateral charge as PG of Directors and Equitable mortgage of land and building at
Khasra NO- 147/12/2, 147/19/2, 147/10/1, Village Rohad Khata No.667, Khasra No.147//19/2(3-12), Nahri 20(8-0) Rohad, Jhajjar Mouja Rohad Road Mandhothi To Jassorkhandi
Jhajjar Haryana 124501 owned by Victory Electric International  ( Partnership firm owned by director) applicable rate on interest is 9.60% and repayable on demand

** Term Loan - HDFC is a Working capital Loan secured by the way of primary hypothecation of entire current assets, collateral charge as PG of Directors and Equitable mortgage
of land and building at Khasra NO- 147/12/2, 147/19/2, 147/10/1, Village Rohad Khata No.667, Khasra No.147//19/2(3-12), Nahri 20(8-0) Rohad, Jhajjar Mouja Rohad Road

| Mandhothi To Jassorkhandi Jhajjar Haryana 124501 owned by Victory Electric Internationl { A Partnership firm owned by director), applicable rate on interest is 9.60% an
repaybble in EMI of Rs 5.78 Lakh

*#+ [(ja Car Loan is secured by hypotheciation of Vehicle and repayable in EMI of Rs.0.24 Lakh

GECL HDFC Loan **** is a Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line secured by by the way of primary hypothecation of entire current assets, collateral charge as PG of Directors and
Equitable mortgage of land and building at Khasra NO- 147/12/2, 147/19/2, 147/10/1, Village Rohad Khata No.667, Khasra No.147//19/2(3-12), Nahri 20(8-0) Rohad, |hajjar
Mouja Rohad Road Mandhothi To Jassorkhandi Jhajjar Haryana 124501 owned by Victory Electric International ( Partnership firm owned by director) applicable rate on interest is
9.25% and repayable in EMI of Rs 3.57 Lakh.

6A) |Deferud Tax |

As per accounting standard-22 on "Accounting for taxes on Income” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities arising are as follows:-
|Deferud ‘Th; Aduete Amountason _ 31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03-2023
Opening Balance 175 0
Add/Less :- Timing Difference 2.80 1.75
ferred Tax Assets Net 455 1.75 |
Non-current Current
Amountason  31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03- Amountason | Amountason
7) |Qther Liabilities 2023 31-03-2024 31.03.2023
vances Form Customers 125.20 98.53
Dealership Security 80.16 8137 - -
TCS Payable 0.46 0.68
TDS Payable 785 3.66
Labour Welfare fund 036 0.16
Salary & Rumneration Payable 1835 25.75
EPF payable 0.94 017
ESIC Payable 096 0.47
Audit Fee Payable 1.50 0.40
Expenses Payable 1.72 -
Total 00.16 8137 15734 129.82
Long Term Short Term
Amountason  31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03- Amount as on Amount as on
8) |PROVISIONS 2023 31.03-2024 31.03.2023
Pravision foc " benefi
- Gratui
ratuity 17.11 - 0.52 *
Others: - .
| Provision for Income ‘[:35 182.36 29.01
Total 17.11 - 182.89 29.01
-

e )




l Amount as on 31-03-2024, Amount as on 31-03-_]
%) [TBADE PAYABLES 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises;
and

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(Refer note (a) below)

Note:
As per Schedule 111 of the C p Act, 2013 and notifi number GSR 719 (E) dated November 16, 2007, the amount due as at the year end due to Micro & Small Enterprises
as per Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as given below :

(a

-

Particulars Amount as on 31—03-2024' Amountason  31.03-]
2023
(i) The Principal Amount & Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
anv sunnlier as at end of the vear 35.81 16.56
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
Interest due on above 3581 16.56

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payments
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year,

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act 2006
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year. &

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding year, till such date when the interest dues as above

(b) This information has been compiled in respect of parties to the extent they could be identified as Micro and Small Enterprises on the basis of information available with the
Management as at March 31. 2024,

€)  There is no amount due to Investor Protection and Education
Fund.

d)  Trade Payables Ageing
As At March 31, 2024

Particulars

35.81

219.83




Long Term Short Term
nount as on 03- mountas on
11) [Loans and Advances __Amountason _31-03-2024 2023, 1-03-2024 31-03-2023
Advances Recoverable in cash or kind . - 20936 137.72
Advance Salary - - - 344
Advance to Supplier al v 98.73 24015
Bank Guarantee Against FDR 0.60 053 - -
Security Deposit With Vendors 2337 2361 - -
|Security Deposit With Government Authorties - - 1.83 6.96
Other Secuirty & Deposit with Bank & Others - 35.00 - -
Advances Against services to be received - - 6.00 -
Advances Against goods to be received 1.01 -
(A) 2397 59.14 316.93 388.27
Other Loans and Adavnces
Balance with Government Authorities 191.17 169.89
Advance Custom Duty 7.10 -
| ey - - 198.27 169.89
[ (A+B)| 23.97 | 59.14 515.21 | 558.16
Inventories (mode of valuation /goods in transit also to e Amountason  31-03-2024 Amoustason 3103
12
) stated) 2023
Raw material 133.18 3413
|Finished Goods 23145 107.43
364.63 14156
2 Amountason  31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03- e
13) | Trade Receivable (unsecuredconsidered good) 2023
Trade receivables outstanding for a period Less than
six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 497.07 349.58
497.07 349.58
Trade receivables for a period 2
six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 524.06 500.59
524.06 500.59
Total 1,021.13 850.18
a) Trade Reclevables Ageing Is given hereunder:-
As At March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 Years Dr‘:‘_n ” Total
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful 1,021.13
497.07 103.19 23.99 35179 45.09
(iif) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful
b) Trade Recievables Ageing is given hereunder:-
As At March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 Vears ""’T':,'f“ 3 Towl
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
(if) Undisputed Trade R - 34958 508 421.15 53.18 2118 850.18
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade R b
14) Amountason  31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03-
Cash and cash equivalents 2023
Balance with Banks -
Cash on hand I 44,95 3.17
Talall 44.95 3.17
Non-current Current
Amountason  31-03-2024 Amountason  31-03- Amount as on Amount as on
15) |Other Assets 2023 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
IP':meAI Subsidy National Automotive 5 6905
Security Deposit eda Gujarat 5.00 500 o
Security Deposit with RT'0 100 Loo
Security Deposit with Electricity Kohad 3.49 349
Rent Security 0.76 169
Deposit & Other Securities = 2.63
Security Deposit against Tender Work 532 15.52
FUR Housing loan 5.00
Director Imprest
1 Mgu 1ecnnoiogy
Total 15.57 34.33 .




Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited
CIN:U31909DL2018PLC341184

Plat No. 6, Second Floor, Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment, Paschim Vihar, West Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110063
Notes to Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

[Amount in La
Figures for the period Figures for the period
Note Nn.l Particulars I ending31-03-2024 | ending31-03.2023
16) |Revenue from Operations:-
a) Sale of Goods 484428 5,190.91
Total 4844.28 5,190.91
|
4 Figures for the period Figures for the period
17) [Other Incame - | ending31.03-2024 l ending 31-03-2023
Discount 695 0.03
Foreign Fluctuation 54.17 -
Interest Income 097 0.07
Miscellaneous 026 0.05
Freight . 887
Number Plate Charges 021 039
[Credit Balances Written back 16.92 C
Total| 79.49 9.40 |
Figures for the period Figures for the period
A% [ e s | ending 31-03.2024 ending 31-03-2023
Opening Stock 34132 310.44
Add : Purchases 3,508.006 3,762.23
Other Direct Expenses 437.069 32012
Less : Closing Stock 133.184 . 3413
TOTAL 3,846.02 4,358.66

18 (a) [l‘.hann in inventory Pgur uf:::w-p-riod | n.-;r: ';r}:;_F;ﬂ“d
Q) k of Fi 100ds 107.43 382.11
losi Goods 23145 107.43
Total (124.02 27469

» Figures for the period Figures for the period

19) |Expenses:-

) I s I ending 31032024 ending 31-03-2023

a)  |Emplovee Benefits Expense :-
Director Remuneration 38.50 31.80
Salaries and Wases 5 7743 79.55
Staff Welfare Expenses 1391 9.18
Contribution to ES.| 414 427
Contribution to E.P.F 281 0.92
Contribution to LW.F 165 0.64
Cntribution to Gratutity 650 3

Total (a) 144.93 12637




1)  Emplovees Benefits
The Company has dlassified the various benefit provided to employees as under:

() Defined Contribution Plans
mwmmmmmmm Mmmanmmwnunmhmmhqﬂmm
emwmﬂwwmaemmndpllnsmrndhyhmml Pwﬂdent?uvd:onn\hslomrmﬁucwmumquln:d to contribute
a specified mrmdmﬂlmmmmmmhmmmmmmmﬁmmnwn;p:nyhaxnmmhcdme fallowing

.

in the of Profit and L der Company's Defined
Figures for the period Figures for the period
ending 31-03- ing3 20!
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds 446 1.56
4.46 1.56

(i)  Defined Benefit plans and other long term benefits
The company’s employees’ gratuity and leave encashment obligation are provided in the books of account as at year end, The present value
of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation done as per Accounting Standard 15, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which

recognizes each period of service as giving rise to d unit of ch unit sep to
build up the final obligations.
Acturial Valuation is as under : Gra d
Figures for the period Figures for the period
@ 31-03-2024 eni 31-03-2023

1) Changes in the present value of defined benefit
obligation:
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year/ period NA
Net of Fair Value of Opening Plan Assets 1113
Service cost 448 NA
Interest cost 0.80 NA
Expected Return on Plan Assets . NA

il I (Rains) d in the vear 123 NA
Benefit paid by the Company . NA
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the vear/period 17.63 ” NA
2) Changes in the Fair Value of the Assets
P at the of the year NA NA
Liability on acquistions » =
Actual return on Plan assets . -
‘Actual Company Contributions . =
Benefits Paid - -
Sale of stake in Subsidy - =
Plan assets at the end of the vear NA NA
3) Net Assets (liabilty) recognised in Balance Sheets
Present value of unfunded obligations Recognized 17.63 NA
Fair Value of Plan Assets Nil Nil
Net Assets (liability) recognised in Balance Sheets 1763 NA
ne of soapl % ised during th
year
Current Service Cost 4.48 NA
Interest Cost . 0.80 NA
Expected return on Plan Assets - NA
Actuarial losses (gains) recognised in the vear 123 NA
Total Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss Account 650 NA
5) Actual and v
Actual Benefit Payments =
Actual Contributions -
5] Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate per annum: 697%P.A NA
Future Increase in compensation 7% PA NA
Expected return on Plan Assets NA NA
In Service Mortality 1ALM 2012-14 Ultimate NA
Retirement Age: 58 Years NA
Arttrition Rate: 5% P.A N.A

Note : The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actual valuation , taken Into accounts inflation,senority,
promation and other relevant factors on long term basis including supply and demands in the employement

b) Fl'lnn:: Costs &=
Interest On Loan 7.51 15.90
Interest On Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 0.51 081
Interest On OD 3882 45.22
Interest On Govt, Duties - 0.05
Interst on Income Tax 0.70 -
Interest On PF - 089
Interest On LWF . 045
Other Finance cost:- . -
Bank charges 226 0.53
Total (b) 4979 63.85




€)  [Administrator & Other Expenses
Advertisment Expenses 261 -
Bad Debrs 3871 1097
Business Promotion 9.89 0.86
Commission Incentive 189 10.40
Custom Duty 071 0.15
Convevance Expenses 6.37 287
Discount 44.20 4791
Entertainment Expenses - 001
Factory Licence /Permit - 574
Festival Expenses 3.08 284
Filling Fees 302 041
Foreign Fluctuation - 098
Freight & Forwarding Expenses 3232 711
Insurance & Rto Charges 18.59 2554
Insurance Factory & Other 162 &
Internet Expenses 0.45 0.30
Late Fees 199 0.03
Legal & Professional Charges 3.09 517
Consultancy Charges 2221 =
Labour Charges - 1.66
Membership Fees 042 .
Medical Expense 0.38 031
Misc Exp, 3.68 0.46
Office Expenses 16.03 2.54
Printing & Stationery 6.23 1.24
Power & Fuel 593 253
Postage & Courier 386 334
Repair & Maintenance 1217 2043
Rent 1181 8.80
Rto Fees - 0.08
Sale Promotion 5.02 285
Security Guard Expenses 3.80 3.67
Telephone Expenses 0.89 0.15
Transport Charges * 0.01
Tender Fees - 010
 Travelling Expenses 1192 9.90
Water Charges = 0.65
Preliminary Exp W/off - o 0.02
Audit Fees 150 050
Total (d) 27438 244.53
19 (4) l,. st 16 Ausdibors , Amount as on al-ns-znul Amount as on 31-03-2023
Statutory Audit Fees 1.50 0.50
[ Total | 150 ] __050]
| 19(e) |va|..- of Imports an CIF Basis In Respect of | Amount as on 3”"‘”“[ Amount as on 31-03-2023 [
Raw Material 397.37 269.86
Total I 397.37 | — 26986
LG, Earnings Per Share (EPS) Amount as on 31-03-2024]  Amountas on 31032023
Profit and Lass for the year (in absolute term) 5.25,58,132 7223171
Number/Weighted Average number of equity shares
outstanding at the end of the year 25,62,500 13,027,500
Average number of equity shares after taking effect of dilutive
Patiial aquicy shares 25,62,500 13,07,500
Nominal vzlneafequlqﬂwmus.) 10 10
Basic Earnings per share 2051 552
uted [ e 20,51 5.52

l_m ,m.ud Party Disclosures

l Amnnmonal-ns-znul -Illlonnlunn.?l-ﬂS-ZBE'

18, the d

with the related parties are Riven below:

As per of
(1) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and

amount outstanding as on 31.03.2024
Serial No_Name of the related Pa

1 Mr.Sanjay Kumar Poph

2 Mrs.Seema

3 Ms. Palak Polpy

4 Mr. Kanwal Nain

5 Future Star Energy Solutions Private Limited
& OK Green Mobility Private Limited

7 Victory Electric International

8 Active Power Control & Care

9 Active Power Electricals

0 PSS Technology .

1 VGK Electric Vehicle Industry Private Limited

=

Relationship I
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Relative of Director

Companies in which dir d
Companies in which directors are interested
Partnership Firm in which Directors are Partner
Proprietorship in which Director is Proprietor
Proprietorship in which Director is Proprietor
Proprietorship in which Director is Proprietor
Companies in which directors are interested

Amount In Lakhs
For the year ended| For the year ended|
31.03.2024/ 31.03.2023
1 Remuneration
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Popli 1309 13.20
Mrs.Seema 12.27 13.20
Ms. Palak Polpy 1313 5.40
Mr. Kanwal Nain 3.60 3.60
2 Sale of Goods - .
Future Star Energy Solutions Private Limited 238.19 824.62
Victory Blectric International - 7.14
Active Power Electricals 2382 3386
3 Purchase of Goods » .
Future Star Energy Solutions Private Limited 910.24 1,012.71
OK Green Mobility Private Limited . 5.55
Active Power Control & Care 77.68 109.11
4 Loan Taken L =
Mrs.Seema s 025
Repayment of Loan .
Mrs Seema 0.25 -
6 Loan Given .
OK Green Mability Private Limited 7164 131.08
(iid)y at the end  year - -
R B S— -
13




INR Amount in Lakhs

22 Foreign currency exposures outstanding at the vear end 31.03.2024
A
Seria P L Amount in Foreign Equivalent amount in Indian
! Currency (USD) Rupees
1 Trade Payables 26,221 2186
2 Advance to supplier 96694.94 80.61

Foreign currency exposures outstanding at the year end

INR Amount in Lakhs

Serial NO|Particulars

‘Trade Payables
Advance to supplier

Note 23: Regul

Note 23.1: Ratio Analysis

31.03.2023
Foreign l Equival nnmu:linlud!llll
wrcncy (USD) Bupces
26,221.00 18.93
3.17.432.74 210.78

jm Particulars 31-03-2024] 31-03-2023'
1 Current Ratio 179 120
2 Debt-Equity Ratio 0.55 1.56
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 112 027
4 Return on Equity Ratio 077 022
5 Inventory Turnover ratio 15.20 1045
& Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times) 5.18 607
7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 812 5.06
8 Net capital turnover ratio (in times) B30 9.05
9 Net profit ratio 10.85% 1.39%
10 Return on Capital employed 59.89% 15.86%
Explanation for change by|
% chang more than 25%|
[N Trarticuiars I ]
1 Current Ratio 48.66% Due to Increase in current assets

2 Debt-Equity Ratio
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio
4 Return on Equity Ratio
5 Inventory Turnover ratio
6 Trade Recelvables turnover ratio (in times)
7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
B Net capital turnover ratio (in times)
9 Net profit ratio
10 Return on Capital employed

-64.88% Increase in Equity
322.87% Reduction in Interest Cost
249.80% Increase in §BIT

45.40% Increase in Inventory
-14.76% NA

60.61% Decrease in Trade payables
-8.19% NA
679.70% *Increse in Prafit
277.52% Increase in EBIT

* Buring the Year Company has increased Net Profit in with earlier year. The imp; profithas been derived by
reducing the cost of Material Consumed, The Company has saved around Two Battery per unit sold and also saved on accessories
material on a result of Technology upgradation and reduced Spare Battery and Accessories equiped in E- Rikshaw in Comparision
with earlier years.

Note 24: Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction
on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

Note 25: Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

A) The Company has not advanced, loaned or invested any funds (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) in any other persons or entities, Including foreign entities (“1 fes”), with th g, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficlaries*) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign entities ("Funding Parties*), with the
understanding, whether recorded in ‘writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
Buarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 26: Other Statutory Information
(a) The company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 neither in the current financial year nor in the previous financial year.

(b) The Company does not have any Benami propesty. et ATy Sraceeding saier SohEwcs o = v
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Note 28
Previows year Sgures are wped | as and where Consids ¥
Note 29: Contingent Liabilities Amount in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Contingent LubiiKy m respect of Bank Guarantee 155 Lakh &
Note 30
mtmnmmmmumwmm
As Per Our Vehicles Internationa! Lid
For SESPF &
mmlmnm ) e Palyk Poply f
Partner : f Managigire Whole-time djrector /
Membership DIN: 08607295 =
FRN: 023970
Place: Greater Noida
Date: 10.08.2024 b
UDIN: *
3 Zu CFo
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 .

Note 10 : Property, Plant and Equipment

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Plant and Machinery Furniture & Vehicles Computer & Total
Fixtures Accessories

Gross Block
As At April 1, 2023 192.98 1.24 9.99 4.44 208.66
Additions - = - .86 .86
Deductions - L % ) x
As At March 31, 2024 192.98 1.24 9.99 5.30 209.52
Depreciation / Amortisation -
At 01.04.2023 57.02 1.12 5.97 2.63 66.75
For the year 24.70 12 1.26 1.43 27.51
Deductions/adjustments - - = = -
As At March 31, 2024 81.72 1.24 7.24 4.05 94.26
Net Block
As At March 31, 2024 111.26 .00 2.75 1.25 115.26
As At March 31, 2023 135.96 12 4.02 1.81 141.91
a) Capital-Work in Progress

Particulars Plant and Machinery Building Total
Gross Block
As At April 1, 2023 - - -
Additions - 18.45 18.45
Deductions -
As At March 31, 2024 - 18.45 18.45
Capital work in progress ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Lis’s'et::n 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Building 18.45 - - - -
Total - - - . »
Capital work in progress ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1 year

Building - - - v -
Total - w 3 P y




Victory Electric Vehicles International Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 .

Note 1: Corporate Information

VICTORY ELECTRIC VEHICLES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED was established on 26th October, 2018. The Company is engaged in the business of of manufacturing of
battery operated electric rickshaw, solar rickshaw, Auto-rickshaws, Motor vehicles, Scooters, Motor-Scooters, three-wheelers, motor cycles, cycles automobiles,
motorcars.The Company has its registered office at Plot No. 6, Second Floor,Block A-5, Maa Bhagwati Apartment Paschim Vihar Delhi 110063,

Note 2: Accounting Convention

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP), and mandatory
accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 7 of companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2014 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs. The company has complied in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act 2013.The financial statements
have been prepared on an accrual & going concern basis and under the historical cost convention,

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous years, except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy with that to in use,

Note 2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, requires making of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting year. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods,

Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known/ materialized.

b. Going Concern
The Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis.using accrual concept except for the statement of cash flow

¢ Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
Assets:
An asset is treated as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:

A liability is current when:

(a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

(€) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

d. Revenue Recognition

Sale of products

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of the products to customers at a point in time i.e. when the products are delivered to the carrier in an amount that
reflects the consideration that the company expects to receive in exchange for those products (i.e.) transaction price.

Interest

Interest is recognized on time proportion basis, determined by amount outstanding and the rate applicable and where no significant uncertainity as to measurability
or collectability exists.

Dividend income
Dividend Income on Investment is recognized when right to receive the payment is established.




e Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangibles

Property, Plant and Equipments are recorded at the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost of a Property, Plant and Equipment comprises purchase
price, freight, duties, non-refundable taxes or levies and other directly attributable costs incurred to bring the assets to their working condition for intended use; any
trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gains or losses arising from sale of PPE are measured as the difference between the net proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which the asset is sold.

Subsequent costs related to an items of property, plant and Equipments are recognised in the carrying amount of the items, if the recognation criteria are meet.

4 Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the written down value method as per the useful life specified in Part "C" of Schedule I of the Companies Act,2013
and after retaining the residual value of 5% of the original cost of the assets as specified in the said Schedule. r. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a
period is proportionately charged. Further, the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 requires that useful life and depreciation for significant components of an
asset should be determined seperately. As certified by management, there is no component that needs to be seperately accounted for. Property, Plant and
Equipments having value less than * 5,000 are fully depreciated.

Category As Per Schedule I1 |As Per Management

15 Years 15 Years

Plant and Machinery
3-6 Years 3-6 Years L

Computer & Accessories
10 Years 3 years

Furniture and Fittings
8Years 8 Years

L‘Velllcles
g Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at exchange rate prevailing at the year end and overall net gain/loss is adjusted to the Statement of
Profit & Loss. Non-Monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction.

The exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting these items at rates different from rates at which these were initially
recorded/reported in previous financial statement are recognized as income/expense in the year in which they arise

h. Taxes on income

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax Jurisdictions where the company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year, and quantified using the tax rates and was
enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date, Deferred tax assets subject to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried forward only to
the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

L Employee Benefits
Expenses and Liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Revised Accounting Standard 15 - Employees Benefits (Revised 2005).

i) Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit or loss of the year in which related service is
rendered

i) Payments to Defined Contribution Retirements Benefit Schemes are charged as an expense they fall due.

The company has defined contribution plans for the post employment benefits namely Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance. The company's contributions

iii) For Defined Benefit Schemes, ‘the c:ost of p;ovidtng benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the profit and loss account for the period in which they occur. Past service cost is
recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortized on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefit
become vested.




i- Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognized in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations arising as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow
of resources, the amount of which can be reliably estimated.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

k. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are changed to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they
oceur.

L. Leases

Operating Lease: Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incident to the ownership of assets substantially vests with the lessor, are recognized as
operating leases. Lease rentals in respect of such assets taken are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss as per the terms of the lease agreement.

Finance Lease: Lease arrangements where all risks and rewards incident to the ownership of assets substantially transferred to the lessee. The lower of the fair

value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease rentals is capitalised as fixed assets with corresponding amount shown as lease liability. The principal
component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease liability and the interest component is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
“~

m. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at lower cost and net reliable value. Cost is determined using the Weighted Average method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.




n. Earning per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of
the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. A transaction is considered to be anti-dilutive if its effect is to increase the amount of earning
per share, either by lowering the share count or increasing the earnings.

0. Cash Flow Statement

The cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated as specified in Accounting Standard -3 (AS-3) "Cash Flow Statement".

p. Lash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

g. Impairment of Assets

(%

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which an asset is identified as impaired, After impairement depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining
useful life. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
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